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The following Matrix includes NHDOT’s response to questions and comments regarding the US Route 4 over Bunker Creek Replacement Project RFQ received by March 22, 
2018 deadline for questions and request for clarifications. 
 

No. Doc/Section/Page No. Question/Comment Department Response 

1 RFQ Section 3.5.C 
 
Appendix B - Table B-1 - 
SOQ Section 4 

Is each Major Participant allowed to submit two Project 
Descriptions or four Project Descriptions? 
 
3.5.C - “Using Appendix C, Form E-1 (Project 
Description), show the firm’s experience by providing no 
more than two project descriptions for each Major 
Participant.” 
Appendix B - Table B-1 - SOQ Section 4 - “Form E-1, 
Project Description (maximum four Form E-1s per each 
Major Participant are permitted)…” 

Each Major Participant is allowed to submit a maximum 
of 4 Project Descriptions as stated in Appendix B Table 
B-1 SOQ Section 4.  The first sentence in Section 3.5.C 
should state “four” instead of “two”.  Also, the second 
sentence in Section 3.5.C should state “2” instead of “3”.  
Therefore, the Major Participant can submit a minimum 
of two and a maximum of four Project Descriptions.  
Corrections to the RFQ will be reflected in Addendum 1.  

2 RFQ Section 5.4  
 
Appendix B.2  
 
Appendix B.6 

Appendix B.2 (see below quotation) implies that there 
would be greater than 6 binders total. If the appendices are 
to be placed in a separate three-ring binder, how many 
copies of the appendices are required? Also, should the 
binder(s) containing the appendices be packaged together 
with the original and 5 copies of the rest of the SOQ all in 
one envelope, or should they be packaged in separate 
envelopes?    
 
5.4 - “All 6 binders (original and 5 copies) must be packed 
together in one sealed package.” 
Appendix B.2 - “The cover letter and each section shall be 
combined in one three-ring binder, and the complete 
appendices shall be placed together in a separate three-ring 
binder.” 
Appendix B.6 - “One original and five copies of the SOQs 
and appendices shall be provided (total of 6 binders).” 
 

A total of six (6) packages are required.  Each package 
consists of two binders, one for the cover letter and each 
section of the SOQ, and one for the appendices as stated 
in Appendix B 2 Pages and Binders.  The word “binders” 
in Appendix B 6 “Submittal” and the second paragraph 
in RFQ Section 5.4 “Quantities” should be changed to 
packages. Corrections to the RFQ will be reflected in 
Addendum 1.  

3 RFQ Section 1.4 
Role of NHDOT, Subsection 
E 

In E) it is noted that NHDOT is responsible for 
“Acquisition of rights-of-way and permanent easements 
identified in the RFP.”  Will NHDOT also be responsible 

Refer to RFQ Appendix A, Section 2 (Design and 
Construction Requirements. All property acquisition will 
be secured by NHDOT based upon the Public Hearing 
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for any temporary easements that may be required for 
construction access, driveways, slopes, etc.?  Or will the 
Design-Builder be responsible for those?  

Refer to Right-of-Way Purchase Plans on Project’s 
website under Reference Documents as to the property 
rights being acquired by NHDOT.  See RFQ Appendix 
A, Section 3 (Design-Builder Responsibilities), 
Subsection O for property rights beyond those acquired 
by NHDOT.  

4 RFQ Section 1.4  
Role of NHDOT, Subsection 
F  

In F) it is noted that NHDOT is responsible for “Owner 
acceptance, inspection, and testing”.  Please confirm that 
this means that the Design-Builder will not be responsible 
for performing construction inspection and testing for 
NHDOT acceptance, and will only be responsible for 
inspection and testing for the Design-Builder’s 
construction quality control. 

NHDOT will be responsible for performing construction 
inspection and testing for acceptance only.  Design-
Builder will be responsible for developing, 
implementing, and maintaining a Quality Assurance 
Program as required under RFQ Section 3.8 for 
submission during RFP phase.   

5 Appendix A, Section 3, 
Design-Builder 
Responsibilities, Subsection C 

In C) “Support NHDOT Project-related public involvement 
activities” what specifically is meant by “support”? 

Supporting public involvement activities will be defined 
within the RFP.  This support will likely involve 
assistance in coordination of the Design-Builder’s 
constructability , traffic management plan and addressing 
local project issues as necessary with, as a minimum but 
not inclusive, local property owners, town officials, 
regional emergency responders, State and local elected 
officials, federal and state agencies, and public and 
private corridor transit and freight companies. 

6 Appendix A Section 3, 
Design-Builder 
Responsibilities, Subsection G  

In G) “Environmental mitigation and compliance 
monitoring” what environmental mitigation is anticipated? 

Refer to RFQ Appendix A, Section 4 (Project Status) and 
Anticipated Permits and Approval Needs Table for list of 
permits.  As part of the issuance of project environmental 
permits, permit conditions and monitoring may be 
required.  The requirements for environmental mitigation 
will be defined in the RFP. 

7 Appendix A, Section 3, 
Design-Builder 
Responsibilities, Subsection H 

In H) “Support NHDOT in securing certain environmental 
permits” which permits is the Design-Builder anticipated to 
have to support, and what is meant by “support”? 

Refer to RFQ Appendix A, Section 4 (Project Status) as 
to anticipated permits and status. All other agency 
required permits beyond those obtained by NHDOT that 
are necessary for the proposed work to include but not 
limited to the  means and methods of the Design-Builder 
will need to be supported by the Design-Builder.  

8 RFQ Section 3.5C  
 

Appendix B, Section 4, Table 

Please clarify how many project descriptions Forms E-1 
are permitted per Major Participant.  (Section 3.5C states 
no more than 2, and Appendix B, Section 4, Table B1 

See Addendum # 1 - March 20, 2018 



Form RFQ-C  
Design Build Team’s Clarification Request 

B1   states a maximum of 4.) 
9 Appendix B, Section 2 and 

Section 6 
Please clarify whether appendices should be submitted in 
separate binders for a total of 12 binders (6 sets of 2) or 
whether the entire submission should be included in one 
binder for a total of 6 individual binders. 

See Addendum # 1 - March 20, 2018 

10 RFQ Section 3.6.1 In RFQ Section 3.6.1 of the RFQ, descriptions for the Key 
Personnel are described.  For several positions, including 
Design Manager and Quality Control Administrator, it 
states “Must be a professional engineer in the State of New 
Hampshire now or by the time the initial notice to proceed 
is issued”.  The Construction Quality Control Manager 
description states that they must be a NH professional 
engineer; however, it doesn’t include the reciprocity 
language.  Can this position be filled by a professional 
engineer from another state as long as they have a NH 
license by the notice to proceed, as stated in the other 
position descriptions? 

Key Personnel as defined under RFQ Addendum # 1 - 
March 20, 2018, Section 3.6.1 (Preferred Qualifications 
of Key Personnel), licenses as NH professional engineers 
are required. . 

11 RFQ Section 3.3, Subsection 
D 

The RFQ states that policy limit requirements will be 
specified in RFP. Could the Department please provide this 
information now? 

The policy limits will be identified in the RFP and will 
be consistent with the industry expectations for highway 
and bridge projects.  . 

12 RFQ Section 1.18 RFQ states that the D-B will be required to indemnify 
NHDOT, NHDOT Consultants and others with respect to 
claims arising out of the Contract or Work. 
1. Will the Department be revising this provision to 

insert the word "negligent" before "Contract" or 
"Work"? 
 

Insertion of the word “Negligent” would limit the 
liability of the Design-Builder and not conform to federal 
requirements under FHWA-1273 (revised May 1, 2012).  
FHWA-1273 will be a component of the RFP that 
addresses other contract liabilities for federally funded 
projects on false statements, suspension/debarment, 
lobbying, bid conclusion, bid rigging, and fraud. 

13 RFQ Section 1.18 RFQ states that the D-B will be required to indemnify 
NHDOT, NHDOT Consultants and others with respect to 
claims arising out of the Contract or Work. 
2) Will the Department be revising this provision to 

specifically list the "others"? 

See response to Question 12 above.  Others remain as to 
entities that are affected by the Contract or Work to 
include, but not limited to, project partners such as, 
federal and state agencies and affected regional 
communities.  

14 RFQ Section 3.2 Paragraph A mentions Major Participants conducting 
business in NH and Maine. Is "Maine" necessary for this 
project? 

RFQ Addendum #1 - March 20, 2018 Section 3.2 
addressed references to “Maine.” 

15 RFQ Section 3.6.1, Subsection  
A 

The second bullet point under the Project Manager calls for 
ten years experience managing the design and construction 
of bridge projects. Due to the limited D-B in NH to date, 

RFP Section 3.6.1, Subsection A references 10 years of 
experience required for Project Manager.  There is no 
reference that requires this experience to be for specific 



Form RFQ-C  
Design Build Team’s Clarification Request 

can this be relaxed or eliminated? Design-Build activities. 
16 RFQ Section 3.6.1, Subsection 

D 
Can the third bullet point, "Two years of major D-B 
construction management of transportation projects", be 
relaxed or eliminated for the same reason as above? 

RFP Section 3.6.1, Subsection D requires  specific 
Design-Build experience for the Quality Control 
Administrator  This key Design-Build position needs to 
demonstrate an  understanding of the Design-Build 
process.  

17 Preliminary Geotechnical 
Report 

Were there any tube samples taken in the tidal marine or 
marine deposits? 

No samples were taken. 

18 Preliminary Geotechnical 
Report 

Was there any laboratory strength or compressibility 
testing done on the tidal marine or marine deposits? 

No strength testing performed, but two Atterberg tests 
were performed that were not included in the report.  
Test results are provided below: 

B201, S14 (55 – 57 feet deep)  
Liquid Limit – 35.8 
Plastic Limit – 23.2 
Plasticity Index – 12.6 
Natural Water Content – 41.8 
 
B203, S9 (30-32 feet deep) 
Liquid Limit – 34.8 
Plastic Limit – 22.6 
Plasticity Index – 12.2 
Natural Water Content – 32.1 

19 Preliminary Geotechnical 
Report 

Was there any in situ strength testing such as field vane 
shear tests in the tidal marine or marine deposits? 

No strength testing was performed. 

20 Preliminary Geotechnical 
Report 

What are the performance criteria for the approach 
embankments? 

Refer to RFQ Addendum #1 - March 20, 2018 in Section 
1.3 (C) and Appendix A, Sections 1, 2 and 3 (K) 
addressing geotech expectations. Performance criteria 
will be addressed in the RFP. 

21 Preliminary Geotechnical 
Report 

Will NHDOT be providing any additional subsurface 
exploration services for design during the RFP phase of 
this procurement? 

NHDOT will work with the Design-Build proposer as to 
access by others for additional subsurface exploration 
that may be needed prior to the submission of the RFP. 

22 Notice of Request for 
Qualifications for a Design-
Build Contract… 

In the second paragraph it states that "the Design-Builder 
will be required to hold a State of New Hampshire 
contractor's license." Please clarify because our 
understanding is that general construction contractors in 
the State of New Hampshire do not require a state license. 

The reference to ‘license” refers to the broader 
requirement for Design-Builder to have licenses for the 
qualifications of the planned work whether involving 
disciplines in asbestos and lead abatement, electrical, 
plumbing and/or professional engineering, as required 
under RFQ Section 3.6.1.  The license criteria further 
addresses the certification through the Secretary of State 
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Office (NH) and contractor pre-qualification through 
NHDOT. See clarification in Addendum #2.  

23 RFQ Section 3.6 D) Required 
Licenses 

This section states that "At the time the Contract is 
awarded, the Design-Builder shall be properly prequalified 
and licensed in accordance of the laws of this State." Please 
clarify what prequalification and/or licensure is required 
for the Design-Build team’s general contractor. It is our 
understanding that general construction contractors in the 
State of New Hampshire do not require a state license. 

Depending upon the Design-Builder as defined under 
RFQ Section 1.2, prequalification and/or licensure refers 
to the broader requirement for Design-Builder to have 
professional engineering licenses for Key Staff, team 
member certification through the NH Secretary of State 
Office and pre-qualification for highway and bridge 
construction by NHDOT. See clarification in Addendum 
#2 

24 RFQ Appendix C Forms, 
Form L-2 

Item 7 states "Has any violation of the Contractor's State 
License Law…".  Please clarify because it is our 
understanding that general construction contractors in the 
State of New Hampshire do not require a state license. 

Depending upon the Design-Builder as defined under 
RFQ Section 1.2, contractor license laws refers to any 
entity that requires compliance to State License Laws 
and NHDOT prequalification. 

25 RFQ Section 3.6.1 Preferred 
Qualifications of Key 
Personnel 

In C) Design Manager and D) Quality Control 
Administrator it requires “Must be a registered professional 
engineer in the State of New Hampshire now or by the time 
the initial notice to proceed is issued.”  In E) Design 
Quality Control Manager and F) Construction Quality 
Control Manager it requires that “Must be a NH 
professional engineer and have a minimum of 5 years 
experience in highway and/or bridge design.” Can the 
Design Quality Control Manager and the Construction 
Quality Control Manager requirements be revised to also 
allow NH professional engineer registration by the time the 
initial notice to proceed is issued? 

Addendum #2 will address revised requirement for 
professional engineering status for Key Personnel in 
RFQ Section 3.6.1.   

26 RFQ Section 3.6.1 Preferred 
Qualifications of Key 
Personnel 

In D) Quality Control Administrator and G) Environmental 
Compliance Manager it is required that these key personnel 
“must not be assigned any other duties or responsibilities 
on this Project or any other projects unless approved by 
NHDOT.” For the other key personnel positions listed in 
this section could one person perform two roles? 

Addendum #2 for clarification of assignments for Key 
Personnel in RFQ Section 3.6.1.  

 


